SPRATTON
VILLAGE DESIGN STATEMENT

Adopted as a Supplementary Planning Document by
Daventry District Councilon 15" May 20136 .

SPRATTON VILLAGE DESIGN STATEMENT



SUMMARY

This Village Design Statement has been
prepared for the parish of Spratton by a group
of 11 residents over a period of three years.

During the same period a Spratton Parish Plan
has been produced setting out the social aims
needs and aspirations of the community.

The group initiated an open meeting and a
village walk followed by a questionnaire. This
was followed by numerous other consultations
with village organisations and two public days
when draft plans were available for inspection.
Two meetings have also taken place with
planning officers from Daventry District.

At the same time the Spratton Local History
Society has carried out a survey of the
buildings in the village and sections of this
valuable work have been added to this plan.
Further consultation was undertaken by
Daventry District Council in early 2013.
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Sign erected in the memorial garden
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INTRODUCTION

This Village Design Statement describes what makes
Spratton special and highlights those visual features and
qualities particularly valued by its residents.

Who should use this guide?

I Property owners planning
extensions and changes
Developers and Builders
Spratton Parish Council
Daventry District Council
The local highways authority
Utilities companies

Itis aimed at ensuring that this local distinctiveness and
character is taken into account when any material
change or development takes place whether formal
planning consent is required or not. It also provides
design guidance to help ensure that new development is
in harmony with its surroundings and is in keeping with
local character and distinctiveness.

E R I

This statement has been written by village residents
taking into account the views and opinions arising from a
community consultation day and exhibition; a village walk; direct contact with village groups and
organisations; and a questionnaire followed by a consultation day to review the draft plan.

This document was adopted as a Supplementary Planning Document by Daventry District Council on
15" May 2013 following formal consultation. It will be a material consideration when assessing any
planning application in or near the parish as well as providing guidelines for any other future changes.

Brixworth Road with Spratton Village Stores
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View towards Brixworth past the Churchyard

VILLAGE CONTEXT

Location

Spratton is an attractive rural village 7 miles
north of Northampton on the east side of the
A5199 road to Welford and Leicester. It is
situated on elevated ground at a height of about
136 m (445ft)) at the southern end of a ridge. It
has far reaching views over valleys to the
neighbouring village of Brixworth to the east,
Teeton to the west and Northampton to the
south. Creaton lies along the ridge two miles to
the north.

Population

At the 2001 census the population of Spratton
was 1099. 22 % were under 24 and 15% were
over 65.
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According to the village questionnaire
completed in 2009 over 77% had lived here for
more than 10 years and 25% had lived in the
village for over 26 years.

Although a significant percentage of residents
work in neighbouring towns there is an
increasing population working from home for a
significant part of the week and as a working
village Spratton has been able to retain a good
range of services, facilities and amenities.

Historical and cultural
influences

There is an entry for Spretone in the Domesday
Book in 1086 when three members of the
French nobility had land in this area, together
with 28 people and one slave with six ploughs

St. Andrews Church, Listed Grade 1
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between them. There were two mills, a six acre
meadow and approximately 495 acres of land.

Spratton Church is by far the oldest building in
Spratton. It was probably there in Saxon times
but enlarged and strengthened in 1120 in the
reign of Henry 1. At this time the Norman
church consisted only of a nave but in about
1195 a bell tower and a north aisle were built.
The 14th Century with the opening of the
Welford Turnpike saw a flourishing Spratton.
The south aisle was added and a new chancel
built together with the erection of the
churchyard cross. The spire was constructed in
the 15th Century.

The conflict between Henry VIII and the
established church led to the closure of
the monasteries. Under Edward VI the
church underwent further change with
the removal of surviving valuables, the
whitewashing of wall paintings and
defacing of ornaments. It is presumed
that this was the time the head of the
cross in the churchyard was removed.

Spratton was no rural backwater and
was situated on the old mediaeval road
from London to Leicester. It also had an
important transient grazing community
with drovers coming from the west with
their cattle to markets in the east. There
is no evidence that plague in the 16th
and 17th centuries had a notable effect
on Spratton which is surprising in view of
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View south over Church down Church Rd

the transient population. The effects of the
English Civil War and the battle of Naseby
nearby must have been significant in the lives of
the villagers.

Evidence remains of ridge and furrow which
survives at the bottom of the Yew Tree Lane
track (Entry Lane) and the long field down
Brixworth Road on the north side.

The success of the wool trade and the
Enclosures Act 1766 led to strip cultivation
being overtaken by enclosures and sheep
rearing. In 1721 the centre of the village was
by-passed by the new Brampton Bridge to
Welford Turnpike, a major change to the
character of Spratton and drawing new

View west towards Welford/Brixworth Rd junction
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Spratton, viewed from the south - Map 1 View F

LANDSCAPE SETTING

Landscape character

Spratton lies within the Northamptonshire
Ironstone Uplands, an area characterised by
undulating hills. The Parish of Spratton follows
a long low ridgeline running northwest
southeast which affords wide views between
the ridge tops. The nucleated settlement
followed the early access routes and was
sheltered from the prevailing wind by the ridge
and benefited from a natural spring line.

The underlying geology is Jurassic Lias clays
with a thick mantle of glacial till. Boulder clay
underlies the east of the village with lighter
sands and gravels lying to the west and towards
the top of the ridge.

Farming is now mainly arable but with three
livestock farms and smaller grassland
enclosures on sloping land nearer the village.
The increasing use of farmland as paddocks for
keeping horses and the associated sheds,
jumps and caravans can become unsightly.
(see policy L7).

The northern edge of Spratton is bounded by
the Recreation Field and Spratton Hall School
and playing fields. These are extensive areas
and enjoy wide reaching views which are
valued by residents (see policy L1). The east
and southern edges are bound by residential
gardens adjoining open countryside. The
western edge of built development is the line of
houses along the A5199. Allotments and fields
used for gallops and agriculture run along the
other side of the road.
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Woodland areas are limited and this makes
hedgerows and mature trees important
landscape features. Tree Preservation orders
are shown on Map 1. Ash and oak predominate
while some small areas of hedgerow elm
suckers survive on the roadside verge south of
the village. There is a general lack of trees in
fields around the village but there is clear local
support for more planting on verges and open
spaces. (see policies L2 and SA6)
Parish soil map*

As rural agricultural buildings have been used
for other businesses, steel industrial security
fencing and gates are being increasingly used.
This is not an appropriate style for a rural area
and traditional hedges and agricultural designs
should be used instead. (see policy L5)

! Soils: Brown - Non-alluvial loamy; Green -
slowly permeably; d - Calcareous, clayey,
slowly Permeable




























































